# TR
@@H}

SS. IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF OHIO )
)
CUYAHOGA COUNTY )

CASE NO. 106333

DONALD B. MILLIGAN, )
PLAINTIFF, ; VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION
VS. % OF
CsX, § DR. BYRON HOFFMAN
DEFENDANT. ; JUDGE

VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION taken before Tim Palcho, a
Notary Public within and for the State of Ohio, pursuant to Notice,
and as taken on April 20, 1988 in the office of Dr. Byron Hoffman,
Huron Road Hospital, 2nd Floor, Cleveland, Ohio. Said deposition
taken of Dr. Byron Hoffman is to be used as evidence on behalf of
the Defendant in the aforesaid cause of action, pending in the
t Court of Common Pleas, within and for the County of Cuyahoga, for
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OPERATOR: We're on the record.
Doctor, raise your right hand.

Do you swear the testimony Yyou are
about to give to be the truth,

the whole truth, and nothing but
the truth, so help you God?z

DR. HOFFMAN: 1 do.

DURING DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. HARLEY MCNEAL:

Q

K

Dr. Hoffman, 1 am going to hand you what has
been marked as Defendant's Exhibit "A", Defendant's
Exhibit "B", and "C". Would you advise us as to what
the three documents are?

Exhibit "A" is a copy of nmy curriculum vitae.
Exhibit "B" is a copy of...or the original of ny written
report covering the examination of Donald B. Milligan
on December 15th, 1987,

The back portion.

And | guess Exhibit "C" i1s the X-ray report
rendered by Hill and Thomas covering areas of the body
that 1 ordered to be X-rayed on 12/15/87.

And did you receive the X-rays that are
interpreted by Drs. Hill and Thomas or just the report?

No, 1 review all. ...1 look at all X-rays that

I order. 1 have the X-rays that we ordered here today.

Very well, If I may, I will then ask you what is
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a curriculum vitae?

Oh, I guess it is a summary-of your past training
and activities of a professional nature.

And would Defendant's Exhibit "A" which you have
identified as the curriculum vitae, is this an accurate
listing of your education, your board certification,
and the activities in which you would have been involved
in over the period of the time from graduation from
medical school up to the present time?

Yes. It also includes the educational background
leading to the practice of orthopaedics,

and what i1s board certification?

In orthopaedics, after the conclusion of the
prescribed required training period, you take a written
and oral examination. Then two years following that
written and oral examination you take a second written
and oral. If you pass both then you are certified by
The American Board of Orthopaedic Surgery.

And certified to do what?

Orthopaedic surgery.

And generally, in two or three sentences, what
is orthopaedic surgery?

It is that branch of surgery that specializes in
problems, injuries, diseases, and the maintenance of

health in what we call the skeletal muscular system and
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1 its associated structures; that is bones, joints, ligament:
2 tendons, muscles, blood vessels, nerves, €t cetera.
3 Q And Defendant's Exhibit "C" relate the findings
4 of roentgenologist relative to the X-rays which were
5 taken, is that correct?
6 A That is correct, yes.
7 Q And do you have a copy of that?
8 A I do.
9 Q And going to the areas which were X-rayed relative
10 to both the right knee and the left knee, the conclusions
11 as to those X-ray findings were what?
12 A May we go off the record for a moment?
13 Q Yes.
14 OPERATOR: We're off the record.
15 | OPERATOR: Wwe're on the record.
16 A Would you repeat your question, Mr. McNeal?
17 0 Yes. As to the information which is listed or
18 contained in the X-ray reports from Dr. Hill and Thomas,
19 and particularly I believe.. ..I''m not familiar with the.. .
(Phonic)
20 yes, it was by a Dr. Crudy who apparently is a
21 | roentgenologist either employed by or a member of
22 Drs. Hill and Thomas who have done X-ray interpretations
23 and undertaking....undertaken X-ray diagnoses over a
24 period of years, is that correct?
25 A Yes.
KENT, OHIO ;
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post traumatic degenerative changes if the trauma to
a joint is appropriate. The vast majority, statistically
population-wise, of degenerative changes in. a joint are

‘idueatovtheu»‘:gg‘ingap_;‘ocess,, because:100 Vperc,en ofhuma

‘beings undergo them:

9 ¢ And in your examination, which was both a

10 ‘ physical examination and also an interpretation of the

11 X-rays, did you find any evidence in so far as

12 Dr. Milligan was....or Donald Milligan was concerned

13 relative to a difference between degenerative and

14 traumatic?

15 9:00:51 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection.
16 i Are we talking about the knees?

17 ( That is correct.

18 y Your question is a long one. 1 think the answer
19 would be that I found no evidence of post traumatic

20 degenerative changes in either knee.

21 ( And that would be in connection with not only

22 the examination you made, but also the histecry which

23 was secured?

24 9:01:24 - MR. MICHELSON:- Objection
25 MR. MCNEAL: Well, if we want to,..

MULT! VIDEQ
SERVICE. INC.
KENT. oOHIO
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MR.. MICHELSON:. Withdraw the
#objection. . ..
MR. MCNEAL: Very well. ‘Fine."
Because we can do it the hard way
if we have to, but I am trying to
save time.

Okay- Go ahead, Doctor-

Well, 1 am not quite sure what the question was.

Would you go back to what you were describing
as to your findings on examination of Mr. Milligan
relative to the relation of his complaints to your
findings?

Well, his complaints in the left knee were pain
in the front of knee in the area of the kneecap. The
findings in the knee, in the left knee, were, as 1 have
stated, aging changes in the knee, in the left knee,
but alsoagingchanges in the right knee in which he
didn't have symptoms. I don't know whether that answers
your question or not.

Very well. When you did examine him under the
heading of "Present Illness," 1 believe Mr . Milligan
described what had occurred 1 believe by the date of
September 13th, 1984. Would you look at that and refresh
your recollection as to what his complaints were with

that. ...respecting the date of September 13th, 19842
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| A Well, the description of the mechanism and

2 circumstances of the injury of 9/13/84 was gained

3 through two sources. One; review of a deposition that
4 the patient gave on 11/3/87 and a corroboration of

5 the patient at the time I examined him of.. -for'&se of

6 a better word....corroboration of the previous deposition.

7 The combination indicated that, "I was walking on the

8 east side of the air compressor room. 1 stepped in a

9 hole.” He did not fall. The patient indicated, "I

10 stepped in the hole and 1 felt severe pain in ny left
11 knee and kind of wrenched myself with my back."” The
12 deposition itself indicated that he walked away from
13 the accident in seu-%—%r\e#-lgdistinction to having to be
14 carried away on the stretcher. That he first had

15 medical attention...well, 1 don't know whether the
16 deposition said this or the patient said this, but

17 anyway a combination of the patient and the records

18 indicated that the first medical attention following

19 the episode of 9/13/84 was on 9/17/84, 4 days later;
20 this being rendered by his private physician.
21 2 And your examination of both knees were as you
22 have previously related to us?
23 A Yes.
24 ) And what part, if any, did the description of the
25 accident of 9/13/84 play in so far as injury to the knee,.
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...left knee 1s concerned?
I can only testify to the patient’s condition at
the time that 1 examined him on 12/15/87, At the time
of that examination I found no evidence of.an orthopaedic
abnormality that I could attribute back to the episode
of 9/13/84
. And that would all be reported in yq,r report
of“December 15th, '1987, is that correct?.
I believe it....(VO)
9:05:35 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection.
I believe 1t is reported in that report, yes,
Well, now also in your examination...physical
e: amination Of Mr. Milligan in your office on I believe
it was December 15th, 1987, what did you observe in so
far as not only your examination was concerned, but
what Mr. Milligan did on presenting himself to you in
his cffice....in your office?
The physical examination in orthopaedics, as
in any field of medicine, but probably more so in
orthopaedics because it is a mechanical specialty; that
is it is how the patients works and how the patient
functions, there are two equally major portions of the
physical examination. One is conducted in the consulting
room. As youare taking your history on “‘the patient. .... (VO

(Vo)
9:06:40 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection.
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Go ahead.

....you watch how the patient walks from the
waiting room into your consulting room, how he sits
in a chair, the posture in the chair, how he gets up
out of the chair, how he walks from the consulting room
to the examining room, how he dresses or how he undresses,
and so forth,so that you are watching the patient's
mechanical movements during that phase....that major
phase of the physical examination. Part two of the
physical examination, which is equally important,is
conducted in the examining room and is what the lay
public interprets as the only part of the physical
examination.| In this particular patient's case the
examination was of the low back, the flanks, the kidney

areas, the sacroiliac joints, both of his shoulders, his

buttocks, both of his hips, and both of his upper and
lower extremities from a bone, joint, ligament, tendon,
muscle, blood vessel, and nerve standpoint. He was
examined in the standing, sitting, and lying positions
wearing only his shorts. His wife was present for the
examination. In that examination all maneuvers were

done by the patient. There was no passive. ...l didn't

move him. He did all the moving. We found his temperature

and pulse to be normal, The patient indicated that he

was right handed. There were surgical scars involving




3O Sn3TOI3UT 3Y3 3B UOQUG] IOX®TI oYl JO BUITTem™S O3
°np ST 3T ST O3 °np ST 3T 3eYM "dBWOD TTIM IT INO U3U3
puU® 4no 3T HUTIQ 3,Ued nok pue 3Yybned s3sH 3T pur UMOD

quhy3l InoA Butam ok 3eylt - csTyz omey <(@ocd Auew* " - noik
I'U3 ST 3Pyl AQ ueswW 8m 3PYM -SWTI IBYJF 3° SqUNyl |y3
3o butaesbbTI3 Ou Eem sagyll *s3zutol om3 «SOY] OT EcgbHueyd
butbe 3o Hutpuri syl HAC EFei-X W) UO @IILTIURIEESS
sem buTputy TeorsiAyd sTYlL -s3uTtol om3 ssayl uTt
butieab ST33TT ® To«] @INOS nok WSY3 pPEmowl <y Udym BaIe
STY3 UT qunyl ydes 3ey3 ST eyl Ag UeSW oM UM
i3eyl ST 2I°UM
*butaebbtaz .ou
Ing ‘ssiabsp Tenbs jo ArrexsierTq qumnyl sya Jo sjuTtol
«dW, 2Y3 3' sn3jTtdsId UOpUST JIOXSTI JUDITS sem.aIaYyl
T OTqe3E dIdMm ASYU3 puR ‘IdfUCI-UOU <I9M KByl ‘pdTesy TI<M
dIdm EIeOs «U3l TTY ~TTRUICHUTI IMOA ogdew JO 3UTY3I
I dzT&5 JY3z 3 oge sem 3I *IedsE IRTMODITD BT 3T
{IeDE Jd3e3dumd ® ST 3RUM
*Ieds a3eiound
' sem 3T  *aIdpInoOyYs 3IC] °2Yyz JO eJI® STYU3 ul
cISpTInoys 3387 InoA 03 buTjutod
"BSJ® STY} UT IKUINOYE 3IIST ©Y3l IO JUOIT <Yl ISMO ILDE
JBTNOITO [TPWSE ® SeMm 2Idyll =—OTsniy dutls snotmexzl e O
S3TS 9Y3 WOI3Z Oeq MOT dY3 UT UMOP" * " 3OBq MOT 8U3 UT

SUTTMTW <Yl UT IBOS ® SeM SISYW *S<dUy UY3zoq 20 Sesle <yl

1T

OlHO ‘iN=EN
‘ONI1 *2DIAuzS
O3dIA 1IINKW

N W I~ 00 O O

— N o

uf



© 00 ~N o o B~ W N ==

=S

12
13
14
15

17

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MULT! VIDEO
SERVICE., iINC.
KENT, OHIO

12

the fiberosseous tunnel. of the thumb. To make that in
lay terms, the tendon beginning at about this point
in the hand that brings down the thumb runs or enters
a tunnel, an encasement so to speak, through which that
tendon runs. Because of the particular architecture and
vascular supply of the tendon at that area, it is
proneX to undergo what we call degenerative changes
and this forms a little bubble on the tendon. So that
as the tendon enters the tunnel the bubble gets caught
and itwill click back and forth. Usually a couple of
shots...in the majority of cases a couple of shots
or cortisone solves that problem. |If cortisone doesn't
solve it, which is fairly rare, 1 would say maybe 25
percent of the time, then the patient has the choice
of living with it or having surgical correction of it.

Is that again an aging process?

Yes, It IS very common. Let's see.

You are on siX.

He had grating of the kneecaps on motion of the
knees of equal degree on both sides. That means that
when he flexed and extended his knee, if this is his

knee and his kneecap is here, you could feel a grinding

of the kneecap on the femur. 100 _percent of people get

this as we age. Otherwise the examination as 1 have

—_—

described it was normal. The.. .he had had a spine fusion
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item 10-A. Upon entering the consulting room the patient
(Phonic)

was carrying a Loftstrand Crutch. That is a crutch that
has' a handle on 1t and a band that goes around the back
of the arm. It is not up into the armpit and so we
call that an axillary crutch. He was carrying a Loftstrarg
Crutch in his right hand, but was not relying on it for
ambulation and exhibited no evidence of a limp. So he
was carrying it, but not using it. During direct range
of motion examination, that is asking him to move the
back back and forth, and through the range of motion
examination he exhibited marked limitation of motion
to the point where he held his back, low back, in the
neutral position in almost rigidity. Then during other
portions of the examination,when we were not looking
for range of motion particularly, he exhibited a normal
range of motion of the back. Straight leg raising in
the sitting position bilaterally was negative to 90
degrees while in the supine position 1t was bilaterally
positive at 30 degrees,

What would account for that difference?

Well, 1t would not be organic orthopaedic
pathology.

You mean that is not due to some injury or

9:14:23 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection.

«+«..problem?

i
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Yes. Again, the patient has control over his
motion of his spine.

All right. What other findings?

During direct examination of the left shoulder,
that is,my attention and the patient's attention was

directed to an examination of the left shoulder, he

exhibited marked limitation of motion due to the subjectivg

response of pain. That is when we were both focusing

on the left shoulder and moving it through various

r‘lotions he exhibited marked limitation of motion of it, ...

marked restriction of motion of it and indicated that
that was painful. However, then during other portions
of the examination he exhibited a normal range of motion
to the left shoulder when neither he or my attention was
specifically directed to the left shoulder, and this
being without apparent pain. He had good muscle function
of the left shoulder. I used the illustration in the
report that during part of the examination you have the
patient lying on his face on the table and you are
examining his spine with him lying down on his face.
That is the final part of the examination that I have
alluded to. Then in the process of having the patient
say, now, get off the table and stand up, he did a

push up with both arms in the process of rolling over to

get off the table without apparent difficulty. 1 think
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he voiced at the time that I saw him. By physical

examination and by X-ray at that point at the time that

-

we examined him he had had a good spine fusion, the

—_—

spine was good and solid in the area of the fusion, and

I don't think the spine fusion in itself was contributing
to any of his back complaints at the time I saw him.

I think that the fact that he had a spine fusion in the
past was indicative that he had had previous low back
problems that necessitated the spine fusion.

Would that again be an aging process?

I wasn't there at the time of the spine fusion
in 1965 and 1 really can't testify to the nuances of
it. Apparently, however, that following the spine
fusion of 1965, according to past history that was
obtained from the records reviewed, at least in 1973
he had low back pain. So that one would have to assume
that.. .and 1 think rightly so...in my patients when I
did a spine fusion 1 always tell them that this isn't
going torelieve the backache for the rest of your life
if you have any causes of backache. He had subsequent
episodes of backache as is expected. So he has a past
history of low back pain and low Sack surgery.

And continuing you aiso had a diagnosis relative
to both knees and what were your conclusions relative

to your diagnosis?
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He had aging changes in both knees pretty much

@comparable degree)maybe a lLittle greater on the left

than on the right. He had degenerative changes, aging
changes, in these joints of both thumbs.

Would that be your conclusions as to your
examination of Mr. Milligan, not only physical examinatio®f,
but the examination which you made relative to his
complaints which were made to you concerning his claim
of stepping in a hole on September 13th, 19847

Well, those diagnoses are a combination of the
tools 1 had available, so to speak, to evaluate the

patient. Those tools were medical records, history from

the patient, a deposition from the patient, physical

gxamination of the patient at the time I saw him, and
an X-ray examination. So we have five tools to use to
arrive at those conclusions.

Then Doctor, finally assuming the statements of
Mr. Milligan that on September 13th, 1984 he was walking
on the east side of an air compressor room when he stepped
in a hole and that from what he told you he did not
fall; he was able to stop his fall and did not fall down.
That as a result of stepping in the hole he felt severe
pain in his left knee and also in some manner he indicated
that he wrenched himself with his back. Now, assuming

those facts and assuming again the statements which 1
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S5th, 1987, and the curriculum

—ae account which has been
marked as Defendant s Exhibit

"A" about which Dr. Hoffman
discussed as to his experience in
training in orthopaedics. 1 ask
the court to admit Defendant's
Exhibits "A", "B", and "C".
9:26:01 - MR. MICHELSON: I .have
no objection to the curriculum
vitae and 1 certainly have no
objection to the X-ray record
which we have....which we will
stipulate as being authentic.
However, we have a strong objection
to the report of Dr. Hoffman. It
is not admissible, it is not
appropriate to be admissible, and
he has testified in full about his
examination and conclusions.

MR. MCNEAL: We will leave that up

to the court to interpret. Fine.

I have nothing further.

DURING CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MICHAEL MICHELSON:

Q

Dr.

Hoffman,

we have met. My name is Michelson
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Sorne Orthopaedic surgeons have an X-ray facility
in their office and they bill for the'x‘l—wrays. I have
never done that because 1 don't ‘want to be accused of
taking unnecessary X-rays,and sc I don't want any

financial gain from the taking of X-rays and so 1 have

~ always referred them to a radiologist.

-+ Well,”I'never even hinted that you wanted any
extra financial gain.

No, I just..,.

I said that is appropriate.

I just wanted to indicate why I don't particularly
take X-rays at nmy own facility.

Oh, no. That is all right. Well, certainly
Drs. Hill and Thomas are at least competent if not expert
radiologistsi\n their operation?

Yes. I understand they are the largest group of
radiologists either in Ohio or The United States, I don't
know which.

MR. MCNEAL: 1In Ohio, 1 think.
DR. HOFFMAN: Is 1t Ohio?
MR. MCNEAL: 1 believe.

And they certainly take many, many X-rays and
review them?

Yes.

ALl right. Including orthopaedic X-rays, 1 presumej

]
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Yes .

And that is why you use them?

Well, no. 1 use them because they are in the offic
building and 1t is convenient.

Okay. You have also read their X-rays?

I read all the X-rays that 1 order.

Okay. So you have read these X-rays?

Yes.

All right. |In your opinion,. ..by the way, are
you qualified to read X-rays?

I am qualified to read orthopaedic X-rays that
fall into ny realm of expertise, yes, That is part of
the training.

That is based upon your orthopaedic training?

Yes. That is true of any orthopaedic surgeon.

~——

All right. You haven't taken an internship or
a residency certainly in radiology?

No, but in the process of your orthopaedic residency

you rotate through radiology from an orthopaedic standpoint

I see. How long is that rotation generally?
The last 5 years because you are required..,.
No, no. The rotation through the..

The department of radiology?

Yes.

Can we go Off the record?

W




25

OPERATOR: We're off the record.
(OFF THE RECORD DUE TO INTERRUPTION
AT THE DOOR,)
OPERATOR: We're on the record.
Okay. 1 think the question was ™% | understand
during the course of your residency in orthopaedics and
your training you have occasion to look at orthopaedic

X-rays on a regular and continuing basis?

© 0 ~N O O » W N R
O

A That is right, yes.
10 Q I understand .
11 A Throughout the 5 years.
12 Q You mentioned a rotation through radiology during
13 the course of the residency and I just wanted to know
14 briefly how long that residency rotation itself was?
15 A It occupies the entire time that you are in
16 your orthopaedic training.
17 Q Oh, okay.
18 A Because you are responsible for the X-rays that
19 are obtained by the particular service you are on; the
20 private service, the out patient service, the trauma
21 service, et cetera.
22 Q And your policy is, as I understand it, to read
23 all of your own X-rays?
24 A 1 do.
25 Q That you order?

MULTt VIDEO |
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That 1 order, yes.

And you make your independent evaluation?
Yes.

And you have done that in this case?

I have.

And you have told us that yvou and Drs. Hill and

Thomas...or I'm sorry....Dr. Crudy(%%%%%ii)

Agree, vyes.

Okay. Now, 1 noticed that in the....now, it is

your opinion after reading the X-rays that Mr. Milligan's
' Yy

left knee X-ray and Mr. Milligan's right knee X-ray

describe basically equivalent knees from an orthopaedic

perspective, is that correct?

Yes, that is correct. There are minor nuances

of difference, but I think they are both equivalent

Okay. So you agree that his left knee showed
a moderately advanced degenerative change including
both lateral and medial joint spaces and the retro-
patellay region with joint space narrowing?

I agree with what it says in the X-ray report

with regard to the knees, yes.

All right. Now Doctor, in the X-ray report of

the lumbosacral spine, I notice +kRa+ you indicate that

you felt the X-ray of the spine showed a stable and strong
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fusion, is that correct? Good and solid I think were

————

your words?

Yes. M opinion was that it was good and solid.
Se— -

Dr. Crudy indicates that the fusion perhaps is

not complete at the L4-5 level and it shows a motion of

L4-5. 1Is that correct?
Yes.
Is that different than being stable and solid?

Basically not because he says, suggesting. He

doesn't say it is.

But that is a possibility that it is unstable?

Anything under the sun is possible. 1t is possible
that both Dr. Crudy and 1 both are wrong.

Well, in this case Dr. Crudy is saying, is he not,
that a review of the X-rays, because of motion in
flexion and extension on lateral views ¢f L4-5 that
there is a less than solid fusion, is that what he is
suggesting?

Yes, he is suggesting that possibility, but he
is not making that a diagnosis.

That is correct. So...and you are saying there jg
no possibility of that?

No, I said anything under the sun IS possible.

All right.

In reviewing the X-rays and reviewing Dr. Crudy's
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1 comments, it isS my opinion that the spine fusion is

2 solid and in fact there is no motion existing at the

3 spine fusion.

4 Q Oh, okay. So you disagree that there is motion?
5 A No, I don’t disagree. Dr. Crudy does not say

6 that there is absolutely motion. He IS suggesting that
7 possibility. There is a certain art left in medicine

8 that is not quite in, you know, such finite terms.

9 Q He is suggesting, is he not, that the X-ray

10 finding, because 1t describes some slight motion between
11 L4-5 in flexion and extension lateral views, may suggest
12 a non-union or an unstable fusion, isn’t that what he

13 is suggesting?

14 A And it may not suggest it.

15 Q I'm asking what he is suggesting.

16 A Well, you can read what he says.

17 Q That is all I am asking. Do you agree with that?
18 A I am agreeing with the X-ray report as it is

19 stated .

20 I'Q Okay. Now, there was some discussion with

21 i Mr. McNeal concerning the difference between degenerative
22 changes and traumatic changes. There certainly Is no

23 way to tell whether or not something is a degenerative
24 change in a joint caused by aging or a degenerative change
25 caused by trauma, assuming a distance of time between the

MULTI VIDEO
SERVICE. INC.
KENT, OHIO




0o ~N oo o b~ w b

B o

13
1%
15
16
17

19
20

22
23
24
25

MULT! VIDEO

SERVICE. INC. |

KENT, OHIO

o o O P

o ¥ o > O

29

trauma and the time you are looking at the X-ray, 1S
that correct?
No.
ALl right. Tell me how you can tell the difference]

By the findings on the X-ray and by the history.

['m just talking about X-rays now. Forget the

history for a moment.

Well, that is like forgetting- part of the tools

that you use in medicine. You don't do an operation

if you forget the scalpel.

so the history i1s critical in making conclusions?
\

e —————————

No, but it is certainly a value.

A significant value?

—

Yes, if 1t is obtainable.

Okay. So the person who has the significant
history ..... the physician who has a obtained or can
obtain a very definitive history and a complete history,
as well as all of the other tests and observations,
certainly 1s in the best position to make an evaluation.
of a patient, is that correct?

Well, you say best. Best relative to what?

Somebody who does not have a complete history or
a complete record and somebody who has not had the
opportunity to personally treat, observe, and examine

the patient over a period of many years.
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9:39:39 - MR. MCNEAL: I would
object to that.

As compared to that person.

Well, the answer to your question iIs yes and no.

Okay. Tell me why no?

Well, no in the sense that your question implies
that adequate treatment can not be rendered in the
absence of a history.

No, 1 didn't ask you that. Excuse me, Doctor.

I certainly don't mean to imply that you can't adequately
treat. 1 asked a different question all together.

Well, you'll have to tell me what question you
asked because that was ny interpretation of the question.

I'm sorry then if I wasn't clear. The physician,

(Phonic)

for example in this case, Dr. Stiles, who has treated
Mr. Milligan for a series of orthopaedic problems and
had him. . ..and treated him with surgery....including
surgery over a period of well over 20 to 25 years has
had the opportunity to take a complete history over that.
25 years, examine all of his records, and himself note
the transitions and the changes in Mr. Milligan's body,
and has had the opportunity to go in and actually observe
and feel the underlying tissues, both bony and soft, even
within his body, for example in the knee joints, in his

back, and in his shoulder. That physician would have
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have to say, yes, but it is not probable.

Why is that?

Because it depends upon the tools that you have
to evaluate the patient.....

What tools?

...at the time that you are making the evaluation.
It is possible....it is probable.. ..it is a fact that
given an appropriate examination one can differentiate
between aging degenerative changes and post traumatic
degenerative changes.

And what would that examination consist of?

Well, it depends upon, one, what trauma or what
degenerative change you are looking for, what joints
you are looking for, the history of the patient, et
cetera.

Well, we want to look about an examination of
the knees in this case obviously.

All right. Let's do a facetious, but simple
illustration. That if the history indicates that the
patient has had trauma to the knee, the diagnosis, for
example, is a depressed fracture of the lateral plateau
of the knee, The X-rays 20 years later show residual
evidence of a fracture of the lateral plateau of the
knee which is healed, and in that area there are

degenerative changes, then you come to the conclusion that
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those degenerative changes are due to the previous
fracture. So that is the way you arrive at degenerative,

I see,

...post traumatic degenerative changes.

And so if....

MR. MCNEAL: Had you finished
your answers, Doctor?

I'm sorry.

Yes, I think I.. ..

MR. MCNEAL: All right, fine.

I just used that as an illustration.

Okay. So if you have a history of trauma and
subsequent to the trauma of the knee, in this case the
left knee, and there are.. ..there is evidence of damage
to the knee as a result of that trauma or some damage
and surgery results which involves partial meniscectomies,
arthroplasties, scraping, removal of tissue, removal
of bones, osteophytes, #r bony masses,on at least two
occasions. That there is evidence of effusion on a
regular or continuing basis over a three year period
subsequent to that trauma and before, during, and after
the surgeries, removal of fluid during that time by
aspiration, the need for injections of cortisone or
other type materials in the knee as anti-inflammatories,

and a continued pain, instability, locking, and giving way
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1 of the knee, and then three or three and a half years
2 later you observe that knee with some degenerative change,
3 could that be the result of that trauma or traumas?
4 9:46:02 - MR. MCNEAL: Show an
5 objection. That isn't an accurate
6 recitation of what happened in
7 so far as this particular accident
8 of September 13th, 1983 is
9 concerned.
10 MR. MICHELSON: That will be up
11 to the jury to decide.
EETY T [ — e e MRMCNEAL g4, vg4,
13 A Is the scenario that you have given me the
14 scenario of this patient?
15 2 I just want you to assume that scenario )
16 B Well, I need more information.
17 2 What other information?
18 A I need to know what the kind of trauma to the
19 knee was.
20 2 It was as Mr. Milligan did stepping in a hole. ...
21 A No, no. I mean the diagnosis of the trauma at
22 the time of the trauma.
23 p] By the examining physician at that time?
24 \ “Yes. In other words, what was he diagnosed at
25 that time.
MULTI VIDEO
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I see. You would have to know that?

I wouldn't have to know it.

You would want to know that?

It would help me if 1 knew it, yes.

Okay. What else would you want to know?

I think really based on the scenario that you
have given me that that would be the only thing that
I would want to know. |If the scenario applies to this
patient and the findings on this patient that I found
at the time of nmy examination, then I wouldn't particularl:
need the diagnosis at the time of the episode of injury.

Oh, 1 see. Well, assume that Mr. Mill.. ..that is
a substantial part of.. ..I mean, 1 don't have it
committed to memory, but assume that that is a substantial
part of the history of the patient from September 13th,
1984. That he injured his knee by stepping in the hole,
twisting and wrenching , feeling immediate pain, had
effusion, instability, and locking very shortly thereafter
on a graduated basis, That within three days required
aspiration of the knee and injection of some anti-
inflammatory, and....by the orthopaedic surgeon, and had
subsequent episodes and continuous episodes of swelling,
effusion, locking....I know effusion may be the same as
swelling.. ..locking and giving way through October 22nd

which was approximately a little over 5 weeks from the
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incident. Then you have had a fair review of all the
other things after that, but it included two further
surgeries on that knee, multiple aspirations of the
knee by the physician, and multiple injections of the
similar material. I assume it is a cortisone type of
material for anti-inflammatory and pain relief. We
are just talking about the knee now

Uh-huh.

And a general increase in symptomatology over the
period of time despite the surgeries. Can you say then
that the degenerative changes you observed may have been
the result of trauma. ....

9:48:13 - MR. MCNEAL: Show an
objection. Again, 1t has not been
accurately described,

....as opposed to simply aging?

Well, fortunately in this caseh and you pretty
well have outlined them, that we did/vgziminous records
on the patient which were of great assistance. Based
on your question we were fortunate in this case that

I think 1 can state that the findings, both by physical

examination and by X-ray at the time that 1 examined him,

were not degenerative changes caused by trauma.

t

Is that your conclusion?

MR. MCNEAL: He has just stated it.
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1 Q Please. That is your conclusion?
2 A | I guess you would call it a conclusion.
3 0 Okay. Now, you indicate that in your review of
4 the situation that you took a description of the
5 incident of September 13th, 1984 when he stepped in
6 the hole and twisted, and that you noted the first
7 medical attention was on the 17th of September; some
8 3 or 4 days later>?
9 A Yes.
10 Q All right. Now, do you know what his condition
11 was or did you elicit from him what his condition
12 was on the l4th of September; the day after?
13 A No, because....
14 Q I just want to know if you asked him.
15 A Well, don't you want to know why?
16 Q Not yet.
17 A Not yet, all right. WNo, I did not ask him.
18 Q Okay. And did you find out whether or not he
19 had spoken with a physician before the 17th at all?
20 A No, I did not.
21 0 Nor whether he received any instructions from
22 a physician?
23 A No, I did not, but there were reasons for all
24 of those.
25 Q I assume there are. There are always reasons.
MULT! VIDEO 1
e o |
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would fall under the doctor that treated him at that
time. I wasn't there.

I understand you weren't there and I understand that
Dr. Stiles was, but you are drawing conclusions about
the damage caused on September 13th. | an simply asking
you isn't it important to know the condition of, in
this case, the knee immediately after and during the
next couple of days after the injury?

Yes and no.

Okay. Now, did you ascertain what was done
and what Dr. Stiles found on September 17th when he
examined him?

Yes. He. ...the patient indicated that initially
on an ambulatory basis he was treated with oral
medication, aspiration of the left knee, and steroid
injections.

That is from the doctor...that is from the
patient?

I have i1t recorded as being obtained, ...that
information being obtained from the patient.

Okay. Now, you mentioned in your examination
that the examination was conducted all in a passive
mode. 1 assume that is in distinction then to active
manipulation by you, 1s that right?

That is right. | didn't manipulate the patient.
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He did..

At all?

No. Other than for testing ligamentous stability.
Well, tell me what that is?

Well, let's take, for example, you have been

concentrating on his knee....

I am only talking about the knee right at this
moment.

Okay. There are certain physical examination
tests which are accomplished by the doctor to evaluate
the integrity of the ligaments of the knee,

And that would include, as I understand 1t now,

holding onto the leg and holding onto the knee and moving

the knee yourself so that you can test whether or not

the knee is stable, or has movement, oru_'those things,

is that right?

That is correct, yes.
Okay. Did you do that?

Yes. I have indicated that under my physical

examination.

And that, of course, is not passive, that IS

active, correct?
That is correct.

All right. So your statement that all examination

was passive with no manip....you say being no.. ..see, I
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under the paragraph of physical examination, we indicated
that we examined him for one of other things, from a
skeletal standpoint. 2 skeletal standpoint includes
examination of joints. Examination of joints include
testing ligamentous stability.

Q Okay.

A So that that indicates that the ligaments.. .well,
you don't have to go back and say that we manually tested.

the ligaments. That is the only way you can evaluate

ligaments.
Q Okay.
A But, in the process of dictating the item number

2 that you are talking about, passive manipulation, that
indicated that there was no other manipulation of the
patient.
OPERATOR: Excuse me. We're off
the record,
END orF TAPE ONE.
START OF TAPE TWO.
OPERATOR: We're on the record.
DURING CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MICHAEL MICHELSON CONTINUED:
Q Okay, Doctor, 1 think we have done that one
enough. Now, when you did do the manipulation of the

knee for stability, what did you find?

A That all the ligaments of the knee by the various
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1 maneuvers you are testing ligamentous stability of the
2 knee, the ligaments were all stable.
3 Did you elicit any symptomatic complaints by
4 Mr. Milligan when vou conducted that examination?
5 _ We. -
6 | Do you remember?
7 No.
8 Are you saying no because you didn't write any
9 down?
10 No, 1 didn't elicit any subjective complaints
11 during the examination or 1 would have written them down.
12 Okay. Let's go off for a second.
13 OPERATOR: We're off the record.
14 OPERATOR: We're on the record.
15 A couple of questions, Doctor, and then I will
16 go on to some other thing. You mentioned particularly
17 to Mr. McNeal that upon several of the, as you call them,
18 discrepancies in the examination you said that he didn't
19 rely on the crutch when he came into the examining room..,,
20 into the consulting room, is that right?
21 A That is correct.
22 Q All right. How far did he go when he came into
23 the consulting room?
24 A You mean how far was the distance of the walk?
25 Q Yes.

MULT! VIDEO a{
SERVICE. INC.
KENT, oHIO |§

'A
B




~ o o1 b~ w N

© 0o

10
11
12
13
14

17

1TO0

20

22
23
24
25

MULT! VIDEO
SERVICE. INE,
KENT. OHIO

45

Oh, about 10 feet.

Okay. Now, you also mentioned the straight leg
raising which in your view became a negative test
because it was inconsistent?

That is correct.

Okay. The straight leg raising...correct me if

I am wrong,. .I am sure you will,...is a test that relates

to nerve damage or impingement generally in the hack and

spine? Is that really what it is about?

: ?ou are wron

Okay. So tell me what is wrong- What is that
for?

The straight leg raising test is one part of a
Combination of tests; the straight leg raising and
Laseque's Sign., The straight leg raising test when done

indicates one of two possibilities; a _hamstring muscle

tightness or sciatic nerve irritation. So to

differentiate which of those two is the case with a
positive straight leg raising you add the Laseque's Test
during the time the leg is raised., |If the patient voices
appropriate subjective responses to the.. .or depending

upon what the patient's subjective response is to the

Laseque's Test it permits you to hopefully, but not

absolutely, differentiate between a hamstring muscle

tightness and a lumbar nerve irritation.
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So the tests in conjunction with the Laseque
Test is to examine to see if , A, there is any nerve
involvement in the lumbar area or, B, hamstring
tightening?

That is correct.

Which is.. ..what causes that generally? What
are we looking for?

You and I both have it sitting at a desk all day.

Why is that?

It is very common in people who lead sedentary
existences and particularly common in women because
they are wearing high heels.

Just the muscle tightens up?

It is the muscles behind the back of your knee.
If you try to bend over and touch your toes and can't,
why, it 1s due to hamstring muscle tightness.

So your conclusion was that he had no nerwe

problem at all in the lumbar area, is that..

-~

Well. ...

...at least the sign didn't indicate any or this
test didn't indicate any?

We did multiple tests in our examination to
evaluate nerve function emanating from the lumbar spine.

We found no abnormalities of that nerve function by

PR

multiple tests.
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with pain and locking since that time. Removal of

loose bodies. A torn medial meniscus. Then he goes

on to talk about recurrence of back pain. Now, that
is information that is important to know when you are
trying to evaluate what happened to him in 1984, isn't
it?
MR. MCNEAL: What is the date of
that report?
MR. NICHELSON: 10/22. That is
in the hospital admission of
10/22/84.
MR. MCNEAL: Go ahead.
Give ny response...go ahead.
Yes.
The answer to your question 1 think is that.. ..I

think the answer to your question would be, no, because

there are discrepancies between the comments made in

the discharge summary covering his admission of 10/22/84

to 10/29/84. Those discrepancies exist between this

discharge summaxsy —
And his operative. . ..

...and the operative report.

Okay. But, if there aren't any discrepancies
then....I mean...okay....That is the reason why it is

not important to know this?
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1 A Oh no, 1 didn't say that.
2 MR. MCNEAL: One or the other
3 is not correct.
4 MR. MICHELSON: Hold it, please,
5 Mr. McNeal. You'll have your
6 chance .
7 Q I am only asking you, Doctor, if you are looking
8 at that discharge summary, the information that he fell
9 with a twisting rotational type injury to his knee,
10 hac? pain and locking since that event, had removal
11 of loose bodies, and had a torn medial meniscus, that
12 is important to know in evaluating what happend to him
13 on September 13th, 1984, isn't it?
14 A That would be,. ..if this were the only record 1
15 had..
16 Q That would be significant?
17 A ...that would be significant, yes.
18 Q May 1| have that one? Now, in the same record
19 on October 18th, 1984 there is a note from Dr. Stiles
20 which was included in that record which describes a
21 severe problem,. ..
22 A Now, this was before the admission to the hospital?
23 Q That is right. 1t is a note that he admitted
24 into the hospital record or that he attached to the
25 hospital record saying.. ..again, I assume it'is relating
|
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isn't it?

A description of what we have where?

Of what this is describing. That event....that
sequence that 1 just described to you is consistent
with this?

I'm sorry. 1 don't know what. .. ..

A traumatic event causing....in the knee joint..,.
or a trauma to the knee which causes a body, a loose
body, causes abody to break loose and become a loose
body and that moves in and gets hung up, as he is
describing here that possibility, that is consistent
with his statement, is it not?

Well, you have asked me to assume a lot. You have
asked me to assume that he had no loose body previously.
You have asked me to assume that a piece of bone in the
knee joint is broken off. And, you asked me to assume
that that piece of bone in the knee joint has migrated
to a position that is interfering with motion of
the knee.

I am not asking you to assume that that happened.
I am asking you to assume that that is a possibility
given this report.

8 - MR. MCNEAL: Show an

objection of possibility again.

MR. MICHELSON: 1'11 withdraw the
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guestion.

All right.

Doctor, the loose bodies that he speaks of that
have migrated in and have gotten hung up, there is
nothing here that tells you how long that loose body
may have been in the knee, is there?

No.

Okay. Can 1 have that? Now, in the same hospital
record, Doctor, you have....I'll ask you to look on
10/22/84,the history that was in that record. This is
again the history that Dr. Stiles 1 assume took of
Mr. Milligan. |In that history he describes stepping
in a hole with a valgus twisting injury to his knee,
What is a valgus twisting injury?

Let me read this first. All right. I think
I can demonstrate it better than describe it. If. ...
let's assume that we are talking about the right knee.
That it is an injury with the knee being rotated in
that position.

Okay. And he goes on to say that he has had
severe pain and difficulty at that time, He was seen
in the office and aspirated. What does aspirated mean?

It means sucking fluid out of the knee with a
syringe.

Given crutches and that despite the swelling going
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1 down he has continued with constant locking, severe
2 medial pain, and inability to bear weight on his knee.
3 Now, all of that statement there, including the twisting
A injury, that is consistent with a torn....if a torn
5 meniscus is found, 1s it not?
6 A No, because he has left out one vital piece of
7 information,
8 Q What is that?
9 A He hasn't describe2 the character of the fluid
10 that he has aspirated.
11 Q This is the history. This is just the history.
12 I am only asking you about the history.
13 3 Well, it is indicated. That should be included
14 in his history. That he aspirated the knee for how
15 many cc's, of what kind of fluid, and how many times.
16 That is the historical. facts.
17 p) Well, how many cc's would you want to aspirate?
18 \ I'm not particularly concerned about the cc's,
19 I would want to know on an historical basis the
20 character of the fluid that he aspirated,
21 ) Okay.
22 N Because 1t would tell you whether the possibility
23 of a torn cartilage exists.
24 ) Why is that?
25 . If 1t was bloody and this soon after an injury it
SERVICE. NG
KENT, oHIO
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would indicate a torn cartilage. ...the possi»ility
the probability of a torn cartilage based on and in
addition to other physical findings. |If 1t was normal
colored synovial fluid then it would probably indicate
the lack of a tear of the medial meniscus.

What i f you find a torn meniscus though when you
go in?

What i f you find a torn meniscus.,..

In other words, you have this history....

Yeah.

...and then you do surgery within a month after
the history, oOr within a few days after the history,
and you find a torn meniscus,...

Well, your question. ...

...isn't that all consistent with a torn meniscus
coming from the injury of the twisting and the fall?

Well, basically you are asking me two things.

You are asking me to evaluate just that one piece of
paper and now you are throwing in. ...

No, I didn't ask you to evaluate it. If you will
remember 1 asked you isn't this important to know this
history? 1Isn't that consistent, this history all by
itself, with a torn meniscus injury? That is all I asked.
I didn't ask you if 1t was complete or anything. Is

there anything inconsistent with this relating to a torn
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meniscus injury?

I could not make a diagnosis of a torn medial
meniscus based on the piece of paper which you just
showed me.

10:12:31 - MR. MICHELSON: I'm
going to object. I am going to
say it is not responsive and I
am going to ask you the question
one more time.

Doctor, please, i1s there anything in that history
that is inconsistent with a finding of a torn meniscus?

MR. MCNEAL: I think he has

answered it twice.

Yes.
What is it?
The lack of the description of the fluid that was
aspirated.
But, the information in there certainly is
consistent, right?
10:12:53 - MR. MCNEAL: Show an
objection to that. 1t is not
consistent.
W?;%,iwe;caﬁgtt;}.
MR. MICHELSON: Objection to your

discussion.
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Your answer stands?

I think so.

Okay. Now Doctor, I would like to go for a
moment, if 1 could please, to the operative report which
has been referred to and that you described, if you
would. Doctor, the operation that is described there
is an arthroscopy with removal of loose bodies,
debridement of a torn meniscus, and abrasion arthroplasty,
is that right?

That 1s correct, yes.

Okay. And so in Dr. Stiles' view that was a
torn meniscus, is that right?

Let me refresh my memory with regard to the
operative note for just a moment.

No. Excuse me, Doctor, before you do that, all
I want to know is that headline says, "Torn meniscus,"”
doesn't 1t?

At the top of the page under operation: it does,
yes.

Okay. And you included that in your recitation.
of what was there?

I did, yes.

Yes. Okay. Now.,,.

MR:MCNEAL: “Now, let him review "

the record. He just asked....




N

A w

co ~N o W

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MULTI VIDEO
SERVICE. INC.
KENT, OHIO

57

10:14:42 -

MR. MICHELSON: How do you know
that 1 am going to ask him anymore
questions about this.

MR. MCNEAL: Well, you are not
being fair to him.

MR. MICHELSON: Excuse me.

Mr. McNeal, let me ask the question
please. The judge can determine
whether 1 am fair or not. |If

you have an objection, please
make 1t on the record.

MR. MCNEAL: I am, That is what
I am doing.

MR. MICHELSON: Your objection

is taken,

MR. MCNEAL: The doctor said let
me review the record for a moment
and you said I'l'l come back to
that or....

MR. MICHELSON: That is right.
MR. MCNEAL: Well, then give him
a chance now.

MR. MICHELSON: |'m going to give

him a chapgeif..allﬁthe chance he

‘needs. Don't worry about him,
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Yes.

All right. Now, certainly a torn meniscus is
consistent with a traumatic injury, is it not?

A torn meniscus can be omswwa by trauma or it
can be caused by not trauma.

And a loose body that is the result of an
avulsion can be traumatic in origin, can it not?

From the description of that particular aspect
of this operation I would say that is a non-traumatic
finding based on my experience.

Based on your experience?

Yes. I was one of the first doctors in Cleveland
to do arthroscopy and so I 5w<m had some experience with
it.

Doctor, you have described the word and the
term avulsion to mean a tearing away and that you said
before, if I recall, it is certainly compatible with
trauma?

Right.

Right?

Right to the....

. That is all I-am asking you. Okay?

i

H
i
i

~to.get some guidelines.
I you...I'1ll let you ask your guestions and not tell

you how tO ask them if you would let me answer without
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question?

Well, 1 don't know. I don't think there is any
in there.

Oh, okay.

I am just wondering.

Oh, okay. Let me read this again then. Wwell,
the term chondromalacia indicates fraying. |In other
words fraying is a finding that permits the diagnosis
of chondromalacia and! so one follows the other.

What does chondromalacia mean?

"Chondro" means cartilage and "malacia" means

softening. So a softening of the cartilage.

It is a softening of the cartilage?

Yes.

All right. That is what that means.

Well, it also means fraying because when a cartilac

becomes soft it frays.

~

At what point does i1t fray?

At what point does it fray?

MR. MCNEAL: When it becomes soft.

When 1t becomes soft.

Or where the material is torn for some reason?
No. Fraying 1S not tearing. Fraying is a
wearing away.

I understand .

[t)
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So, you know, you fray the collar on your shirt
from wear and tear,
Or a tear if it is loose or not strong anymore?

When you speak...he speaks about "The lateral
S

compartment showed moderate degenerative changes without

exposed bone." Now, to make that diagnosis, in all

probability he saw fraying of the cartilage because

that is the sign or that is the finding that permits

you to make that diagnosis.

He didn't say that though?

Well, he didn't say 1t, but he implied it. That
is the only way you can make that diagnosis.

And what does that imply; fraying of what? 1™m
sorry. Where i1s that? 1| apologize, but 1.. ..

In approximately the middle of the paragraph

it says, "Lateral compartment showed moderate degenerative

changes without exposed bone." By definition in ny

30 years in orthopaedics and having done arthroscopy,
moderate degenerative changes are indicated by the
finding of fraying of cartilage during an arthroscopy.
I see. And which cartilage is that, do we know?
Well, it is called the lateral compartment. He
doesn't indicate.. ..that is on the outside of the knee
between the tibia and femur, but he doesn't indicate

where the degenerative changes were occurring; whether
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on the surface of the tibia or on the surface on the
femur .

I see.

He doesn’t indicate that.

All right. And is that the meniscus?

No.
-~

No, okay.

It is the articular surface where the two bones
come together.

All right.

The rubbing surfaces of the bone.

So in that operative report there is some
information that you feel is really another way of
saying that there was some fraying of the area you
just described, and that is what you mean when you
say fraying?

In ny reading of the operative note, 1 believe
he found fraying of the articular cartilage within
the interior of the knee joint in some areas,

Okay. Well, the area you just described because
that is where he said he was degenerative?

Well, there are other degenerative changes in
that operative note,

Yes, but you just pointed out that there were

moderate degenerative changes without exposed bone and
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that leads you to the conclusion that that is frayed
material?

In that area.

Okay.

There were others,

Where else is there a frayed area?

Well, he has never used the term fray....

-

Where else?

..in his operative note. 1 don't need the
operative note. He also indicates from the context of
the operative note, an orthopaedic surgeon would come
to the conclusion that there was also fraying of the
cartilage behind the kneecap on the articular surface
of the kneecap.

Of the patellax?

Yes.

Okay. Anyplace else?

No. He had such severe wear and tear changes
in the medial compartment of the knee joint that he
had complete loss of the cartilage over the medial
femoral condyle. So rather than fraying, the early stage
of chondromalacia, he had worn the cartilage clear off
the medial femoral condyle which takes years to do.

All right. Okay. I'm sorry, Doctor. 1t is

a little awkward here and I apologize for the hang up.
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1'1l try not to be too long. Now Doctor, again |

want to go, if we can, and this will be 1 think more
brief, concerning the May 22nd admission.. ,.May 21lst
admission which you have described in there. |If you

would, would you take a look at this? This is part of

it. This is again the physical examination....I'm sorry.,}.

that is not the physical examination. That is the
history, right?

Well, 1t is the admission history, yes.

Right. And the doctor describes an X-ray view
of a calcified mass which you have referred to in your

report in the medial border of the tibia which appears to

be fractured. in its mid portion, correct?

Correct.

Okay. Now, is that calcified mass, is that the
same as an osteophyte or a bony mass?

I can't tell by that description.

Okay. So.,-.

It could be either,

It could be either. Okay. Either what?

It could be a calcified mass, it could be a loose

body, and it could be calcification within the ligament,

ey

From that standpoint I would have to say that I don't

know what it was. I would have to see the X-rays,

Okay .




‘ 66
1 A That is 1 think the best I can do.
2 Q That is fair. And Doctor, also we have here
3 in the same hospital admission a physical where the
4 doctor came to a conclusion that there was a fracture
5 of the bony projection of the medial tibial plateau
6 beneath the tendons and internal derangement of the
7 knee. We can assume that the fracture.. ..the conclusion
8 of the fracture was from the X-ray report?
9 A Well, first of all, you asked me about the
10 physical examination and then you quote the diagnosis
11 or impression. Which are you asking me....
12 Q I'm sorry.
13 A ....about the physical examination or the
%] impression?
15 Q I meant...I only used the physical as an
16 identifier because on the top you will notice there
17 is an "X" where it says physical,
18 A Uh-huh ,
19 Q And that is all I meant. 1 didn't say it is
20 the physical examination, But, his impression was of
21 a fracture of the bony projection of the medial
22 tibial plateau?
23 A That was his diagnosis based on the history and
24 physical examination, yes.
25 |Q Okay, And can we then....is it fair to say that
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that bony projection is the calcified mass that he
referred to in the medial border of the tibia?

Yes, I would have to assume that by not being
there.

That 1 understand. Now, 1 just want to briefly
go to the operative report, Doctor, again. Now, the
post operative diagnosis. .which means that that is the
conclusions that Dr. Stiles or any orthopaedic surgeon
draws after the operation 1 presume?

The post operative diagnosis, yes.

Right. And in there he talks about the fracture
of the bony projection from the tibial condyle, right?

Right.

Okay. And within the procedure aspect itself,
down towards the lower third, he talks about a fracture
in the osteophyte which 1 am assuming is the bony
projection, is that fair?

Do you have a copy of the X-ray report and we
won't have to do any assumptions?

No, 1 don't. i have what I have, 1 don't have
one, I1"m sorry.

Well, we are making, 1 think at least in ny

medical opinion, assumptions that don't have to be made

because a review of the X-rays might change them from,. ..

change it from an assumption to a fact.
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although they can occur along the shaft of the bone.

There are multiple causes of osteophytes. They can be,
one, a process of aging, Two, they can result from
previous trauma of a particular type around varying
joints. They can be developmental. The patient can

be born with this predisposition of their formation
during the growth years prior to the bony maturation

at the age of puberty. But, an osteophyte is a projectior
from the bone.

Is that disabling in any manner?

It depends on where the osteophyte occurs,

In this case.. ..

It can produce symptoms.

In this case would it be the cause of any
disability?

10:31:46 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection

From the description of the osteophyte as I know
it from reviewing the records, it would not be one that
would cause dysfunction of the knee joint.

Fine. Now, the last question. The statement
has been made by counsel that the hole episode is
consistent with a valgus twisting of the foot or ankle,
I would assume. The plaintiff has testified that
the hole was approximately 8 to 10 inches deep. That

he had his foot in the hole 6 to 8 seconds and he took




© O ~N N o B w N

o e e T e R oo B S o Y S s
Em\s@mbwtowo

20
21
22
23
24
25

MULTI VIDEO
SERVICE. (NcC.
KENT, OHWIO

|

i

70

his left foot out quickly. As you know he did not
fall down. He broke his fall with his hands. Under
those circumstances, does that....the testimony of
the plaintiff, is that consistent with a valgus twisting
as described and repeated by Dr. Sipes?
10:32:56 - MR, MICHELSON:
Objection. You can answer.
I think you are asking me what is the significance
of a valgus twisting Injury with.....
Related to the history as he has....
,,-related to the history and related to the
subsequent pathology found within the knee, is that
the question?
Exactly. Exactly that,
10:33:23 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection
Exactly that.
All right. Let"s stand up for a moment. There

are two mgchanisms of injury that cause damage tears

to cartilages of the knee. The one is a valgus twisting

injury to the knee iIn that fashion, This could occur
under the circumstance....in other words, a valgus
twist of a knee stepping into a hole can occur, There
is another mechanism of injury in which.... (VO)
©10:34:04 ~ MR. MICHELSON:.Objection

1 think the question has been
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answered .

MR. MCNEAL: No, he has not.

He said there are two situations.
MR. MICHELSON: But, the gquestion
has been answered and the question
was, , .

MR. MCNEAL: Well, that is your
opinion.

MR. MICHELSON: The question was,
was the history as given by

Mr. Milligan in his deposition
consistent with a valgus twisting
injury as described.

MR. MCNEAL: He hasn"t answered....
MR. MICHELSON: And the answer
was, yes.

MR. MCNEAL: No, he hasn®t answered
that.

DR. HOFFMAN: There was one other.
item that 1 put in as it relates
to the pathology found in his knee,
MR. MICHELSON: That wasn"t the
question, You put It In. -

DR. HOFFMAN: Yes, 1 did. | added

that as a final.
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MR. MICHELSUN: 1 agree.
DR. HOFFMAN: That was....there
were three items.
MR. MICHELSON: Therefore, |l am
objecting. The question has been
answered.

That goes with the history that | gave you, isn"t

that correct?

That is correct. Now, that kind of an injury
or that kind of a mechanism of injury causes a tear of

the medial meniscus. ’Jt does not cause a tear of the

o]

lateral meniscus. In the operative note with regard to
— =

a torn meniscus the tear was found in the lateral

meniscus. A valgus rotational strain to the knee causes
P _

a tear of the medial meniscus and not the lateral

meniscus. A tear of the lateral meniscus is produced
r— —

by a varus rotational strain, So that the patient’s

description of the mechanism of injury of his knee
does not fit the pathologic findings that were found
at the time of the arthroscopy inside the knee.

EN

the.. ..

And are hot consistent with his description as

10:36:38

....the length of time the f Ot was in the

hole, withdrawn, and without any fall down?
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Is that correct?

The length of time in the hole has nothing to
do with what might have gone on with the knee. \y
comment is is that the description of injury by the
patient does not fit the description of findings at
the time of the arthroscopy when the torn lateral

meniscus was fTound.

Fine.

Thank you very much.

10:36:48 - MR. MICHELSON: Objection

10:36:49-MR. MICHELSON: Objection.

MR. MICHELSON: ©nNow, before we go
off the record 1 would like the
X-rays marked, please, and made

a part of the deposition.

DR. HOFFMAN: Okay.

MR. MICHELSON: 1 would like to
take them because 1 may want to have
them looked at. Can we mark these

please?

OPERATOR: Sure. Doctor, you have
the right to review this tape or
you may waive that right?

DR. HOFFMAN: 1 waive the right.

OPERATOR: And will counsel waive

filling allowing us to be custodian



until the time of trial?

MR. MICHELSON: Sure.

MR. MCNEAL: I do.

OPERATOR: We"re off the record.
END OF THE TESTIMONY AS GIVEN BY DR. BYRON HOFFMAN.
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